



# National Level Sharing Meeting on Diversion under Children Act 2013



# National Level Sharing Meeting on Diversion under Children Act-2013

Jagrata Juba Shangha (JJS) 35/8, T.B Cross Road, Khulna

Editor:

#### **ATM Zakir Hossain**

Executive Director, JJS

Editorial Associates:

#### M.M Chishty

Coordinator, JJS

#### Md. Shojib Ali

Project Officer, PCIEJFC Project, JJS

Published by:

#### Jagrata Juba Shangha (JJS)

35/8 TB Cross Road Khulna-9100, Bangladesh Phone: 880-41-731013

E-mail: jjsinformation@gmail.com

www.jjsbangladesh.org

Published on: December 2016 JJS

Supported by: UNICEF, Bangladesh

Documentation Support and Photo Credit: JJS

Graphics & Print:

**Procharoni Printing Press** 65, Sir Iqbal Road, Khulna

Phone: 041-810957

### Table of Content

| Contents  | Page |
|---|------|
| Abbreviation  | 03   |
| Executive Summary                                       | 05   |
| Objective of the Meeting                                | 06   |
| Participants and Participants Category                  | 06   |
| Introducing, Welcome and Background Presentation        | 06   |
| Community Involvement in Diversion                      | 09   |
| Experience on Diversion Practices in Khulna and Jessore | 10   |
| VIDEO Documentary Presentation on Diversion             | 11   |
| Why Promotion of Diversion is Important                 | 11   |
| Diversion and Children Act-2013: Success and Obstacles  | 12   |
| Open Discussion   | 14   |
| Speech by Special Guests                                | 15   |
| Speech by Chief Guest                                   | 18   |
| Closing Speech  | 19   |
| Recommendation  | 19   |
| Annex   | 20   |
| Media Coverage  | 20   |
| Program Schedule  | 21   |
| Participants of the Meeting                             | 22   |

### Abbreviation

BPM Bangladesh Police Medal

CAMPE Campaign for Popular Education

CBCPC Community Based Child Protection committee

CMM Chief Metropolitan Magistrate

CSO Civil Society Organization

DIG Deputy Inspector General

DSS Department of social services

JJS Jagrata Juba Shangha

KCC Khulna City Corporation

KMP Khulna Metropolitan Police

KUK Kishore Unnyan Kendro

NGO Non-Government Organization

PCIJFC Promoting Community Initiatives for Establishing Justice for Children

UNCRC United Nation's Convention on the Rights of the Child

UNICEF United Nations International Childern's Emagenary Fund

#### **Executive Summary**

Child protection is a very important issue for Bangladesh as elsewhere in the world. Bangladesh government is working to ensure a positive environment for children. The United Nation's Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and Children Act 2013 emphasize on best protection of all children. But it is regretful that many of our children are found to be involved in unlawful activities.

Children who are involved in unlawful activities are not matured enough. Most of the cases they are influenced by someone. Furthermore, Children who come in conflict with the law are often from the most vulnerable and marginalized segments of society. According to UNCRC and Children Act 2013, children who commit minor offences can be relieved from judicial procedure through diversion and get back to the family. Diversion is very new concept in Bangladesh, which is acknowledged at UNCRC and Children Act 2013. Jagrata Juba Shangha (JJS) is a pioneer to develop a diversion mechanism in Khulna and Jessore. With the support of UNICEF, JJS has implemented "Promoting Community Initiatives for Establishing Justice for Children" project in Khulna and Jessore to develop a diversion model in the country. The project worked closely with the judiciary, police department, DSS, local administration, local elected bodies, parents, community and adolescents to develop a child protection and diversion mechanism in the area. The project was able to inspire the stakeholders that the family is the best place for the children for their development and institutionalization should be the last resort. JJS has taken many advocacy and capacity building initiatives for Judiciary, Police department and DSS to apply Children Act 2013 especially diversion for the protection of the children in conflict with the law. To share the experience of diversion activities of Khulna and Jessore at national level, JJS arranged National Level Sharing Meeting on Diversion under Children Act 2013 at Daily Star A S Mahmud Conference Hall, Dhaka on 24 October, 2016. Children Justice Actors like Judges of Children Court, Child Affairs Police Officers, Probation Officers and Community Representatives of Khulna Metropalitan Area and Jessore shared their experience of diversion with National level High Officials. Honorable Justice Sheikh Hassan Arif, Supreme Court of Bangladesh, High Court Division was the Chief Guest. Furthermore, Nasreen Begum, Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs, Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, Additional DIG (Training and Sports) Police Head Quarter, Dhaka and Jean Lieby, Chief, Child Protection Section, Unicef Bangladesh were also present as special guest. Besides that, Judges, Police officers, Probation officer, Councilor, CBCPC members from Khulna and Jessore, Media representatives, national and international NGO representatives were also present and they shared their views on diversion.

#### Objectives of the Sharing Meeting

The objectives of the sharing meeting were to share the experiences of diversion under Children Act 2013 practiced in Khulna and Jessore, to inspire the Children Justice Actors for diversion and inspire the Policy influential Officials at national level for the protection of children in conflict or contact with law.

#### **Participants**

A total number of 55 (Male 41 and Female 14) participants including Honorable Justice, Honorable Judges, Additional DIG, Ward Councilor, Probation Officers, Child Affairs Police Officers, UNICEF Representatives, Representatives from National and International NGOs, Media Personnel and Members of Community Based Child Protection Committee participated in the meeting.

#### The Event

The National Level Sharing Meeting on Diversion under Children Act 2013: Experiences of Khulna and Jessore held at Daily Star A S Mahmud Conference Hall, 64-65 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka on 24 October 2016. Honorable Justice Sheikh Hassan Arif, Supreme Court of Bangladesh, High Court Division was the Chief Guest of the meeting. Furthermore, Nasreen Begum, Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs, Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, Additional DIG (Training and Sports) Police Head Quarter, Dhaka and Jean Lieby, Chief, Child Protection Section, Unicef Bangladesh were also present as special guest. Besides that, Judges, Police officers, Probation officers, Councilor, CBCPC members from Khulna and Jessore, Media representatives, national and international NGO representatives were also present in this meeting.

# Introducing, Welcome and Background presented by ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS

With the consent of Honorable Justice Sheikh Hassan Arif, Supreme Court of Bangladesh, High Court Division the national sharing meeting started by the Executive Director of JSS ATM Zakir Hossain.

After introduction session, ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS delivered his welcome speech conveying thanks to all participants for joining the meeting. He provided special thanks to the chief guest and special guests for effective cooperation in arranging the program.

He also emphasized on the support of related government departments as without their cooperation it wouldn't be possible to organize the program.



He also shared his cordial acknowledgement to all participants for their cooperation in organizing the meeting. Afterward, he presented the background of the project. He particularly pointed out that, when the project has been designed, they thought it would be very difficult to complete the tasks. But now, they gained a number of achievements and this is because of the dedication of different stakeholders of the project. He pointed out that the main objective of the meeting was to share the project diversion experiences. At the same time, he also shared that "Promoting Community Initiatives for Establishing Justice for Children" program has been conducted through 55 developed community-based child protection committee at Khulna and Jessore. JJS conducted the project in partnership with UNICEF. The objective of the project was to contribute in strengthening the child protection mechanism for ensuring better service delivery for the children. The project mainly focused on child protection through prevention, diversion, restorative justice and reintegration services. The Project worked with Judiciary, Police Department, Social Service Department, and Community Based Child Protection Committee (CBCPC) under, Local Government Bodies, Children, Parents and Civil Society. He mentioned that all the activities led by the related departments, not by project and JJS supported them. He further mentioned, JJS conducted some initiatives for promoting diversion in Khulna and Jessore. Major interventions for promoting diversion were District Coordination Meeting involving Judiciary, Police Department and Social Service Department led by Judiciary, Thana based Meeting with Police Officers led by Thana Officer in Charge and Probation Officer, Training/ Workshop with Judiciary, Police Department and Social Service Department on UNCRC and

Children Act 2013 led by Judiciary and Police Department, Formation and Capacity building of Community Based Child Protection Committee. A total number of 168 children got diversion during project period for the offences of Stealing, Fighting, Drug Carrying, Drug Use, Suspicious Movement, Snatching and Eve Teasing from Khulna and Jessore.



In molst cases it was seen that highest number of children has got diversion for Stealing, Suspicious Movement and Snatching. But the better news is most of the children are now in better position and they are leading a normal life. He thinks the major opportunities of diversion are

- Minimize work-load of police
- Minimize work-load of Judiciary
- Development scope for children in conflict with the law
- Uphold Government commitment on UNCRC
- Contribute to peaceful livelihood in family with parents
- Contribute to healthy social environment
- Encourage community social environment
- Contribute to education for all policy of Government

At the same time, the challenges that were faced

- Lack of coordination among related departments
- Low level of commitment of Social Workers
- Sometimes people don't realize the benefits of diversion procedures, rather feel that as an extra burden
- Replacement of responsible personnel in related departments
- Societal negative attitudes towards children under diversion
- · Lack of parent's motivation and sensitivity
- Some actor's perception: diversion promote offences and Absence of rules for implementation of Children Act 2013

#### Way forward:

- Involvement of child sensitive committed agencies for promotion of protection for children at risk
- Compulsory quality effective training for all staffs of related departments
- Recruitment of necessary personnel with adequate capabilities for child protection activities
- Community sensitization on protection of all children
- Media, NGOs, CSOs sensitization on protection of all children
- Scaling-Up the initiatives for all over the country.

Afterward, he emphasized to promote diversion which will eventually create an enabling environment for all children and keep the best interest of the child. After his presentation, he invited for experience sharing from the community.

# Community Involvement in Diversion –Anjira Khatun, Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna

Anjira Khatun, Councilor, word no 9, 14, 15 KCC and Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna shared about the community involvement process in diversion. She mentioned that as a member of child protection committee, they get information from probation officer and JJS when children are brought to Police station. Then they come to the police station, where they assess about the children should get diversion or not through conversion with victim and offender as well as with the family members. Based on group discussion they usually come to a common decision about diversion through family conferencing in the presence of probation officer and child affairs police officer. She also mentioned that, after diversion CBCPC regularly follow-up. She shared happily that the diverted children under her jurisdiction are leading a normal life without committing further offence. As a ward councilor, she appreciated diversion, because diversion give second opportunity to back in normal life and it's a child-friendly approach. Finally, she appreciated the activities of JJS for this noble task and she expects diversion should get promoted all over the country.



#### Experience on Diversion Practices in Khulna and Jessore

Two Child Affairs Police Officer, Khadija Khatun, Sub-Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer), Kotwali Thana, Jessore and Farzana Boby, Sub-Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer), Sonadanga Model Thana, KMP, Khulna shared experiences of diversion in perspective of Khulna and Jessore. Khadija Khatun explained the mechanism of how they treat a child when he/she commit an offence and brought to the police station, In past, they used to take him/her in safe place, then they informed probation officer and family member of victims and offender. But nowadays, they provide food and counseling for the children, because at that time child offender feels nervous. She added that they have already started family conferencing when probation officer and family members of victims and offender come into the police station. She thanked JJS for playing a facilitation role in all stages of diversion procedure. She further added, when she started her job as a police officer, she did not know about diversion. She received many training on diversion from this project. In the past, there was no diversion in Jessore but after initiation of the project, they are trying their best for diversion of the children. She said that it is a matter of pleasure that they did not hear any complexity about diversion till now. She said that diversion is the best alternative for children. Besides, that diversion reduces their workload.



Child Affairs Police Officer, Farzana Boby, Sub-Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer), Sonadanga Model Thana, KMP, Khulna shared the same kind of experiences like Khadija Khatun. She added that they consider diversions as soon as possible considering the best interest of children. She mentioned that Probation Officer, JJS and Community Based Child Protection Committee (CBCPC) all together are playing an active role to assist in diversion. After feasibility analysis through discussion with parents, child and CBCPC whether the child has the possibility to turn in normal life from the offence in future, they usually take steps for diversion. After diversion, when child back into the community, CBCPC take the responsibility to turn the children in normal life through follow-up, monitoring and linking with services. We get regular update from JJS. Lastly, she appreciated the initiatives of JJS regarding diversion.

#### VIDEO Documentary presentation on Diversion

In collaboration of JJS, UNICEF has developed a video document on diversion and shared in the meeting. The documentary was prepared based on a 15 years old diversion child. He was caught for stealing, brought to police station and got diversion. He is now regular in school, living with parents. He is expecting a better future. In this video documentation, Dilruba Sultana,



Judge, Additional Metropolitan Sessions Judge, Khulna, Md. Shafiqul Islam, Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, CMM Court, Khulna, Farzana Boby, Sub-Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer), Sonadanga Model Thana, KMP, Khulna and Jamil Hassan, Child Protection Officer, Unicef present their diversion experiences.

#### Why Promotion of Diversion is Important?

Md. Shahabuddin, Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, Jessore and Md. Shafiqul Islam, Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, CMM Court, Khulna explained the importance of diversion that should be promoted all over the country.

Md. Shahabuddin, Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, Jessore added that as a probation officer, he has lots of liabilities for diversion procedures. Till the meeting date, a total number of 39 children got diversion from Jessore police station and he acknowledged that, CBCPC follow-up the diversion children regularly. He thinks that the diversion should conduct at Police Station because this is much easier than the diversion from the court. He said that, due to intensive work of JJS, Khulna and Jessore showed better progress in diversion and he suggested UNICEF to take more initiatives to spread this work throughout the country. Furthermore, he added KUK isn't the solution in this process because a child gets into contacts with a matured offender in KUK.



Md. Shafiqul Islam, Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, CMM Court, Khulna completely agreed with his colleague from Jessore. He shared that in the past probation officer were not so active about diversion, but recent Children Act 2013 assign fixed role for probation officers. He also shared that Khulna showed better diversion scenario due to intensive work of JJS and when it JJS started working on the issue in all wards of Khulna City Corporation, diversion rate was tremendously increasing and Khulna is the model to all over the country. He gladly mentioned that he got recognition as the best probation officer due to great progress in diversion. At the same point he said, due to various reasons they cannot work properly. He also mentioned if diversion is not in place for a child, the child will lose at least one year from his/ her life. He emphasized diversion procedure more so that the children can come into mainstream life. Finally, he argued to continue the project, neither all the achievements will be lost out.

#### Diversion and Children Act-2013: Success and Obstacles

According to Children Act 2013, diversion takes place to ensure the best interest of children with conflict with the law. Though in most of the cases, the higher authority tries for diversion, but in few cases, it becomes difficult due to various reasons. This experience was shared by two honorable judges Md. Monjurul Imam, Judge, Additional District and Sessions Court, Jessore and Dilruba Sultana, Judge, Additional Metropolitan Sessions Judge, Khulna.



Md. Monjurul Imam, Judge, Additional District and Sessions Court, Jessore said that Children Act 2013 is a very significant act in Bangladesh to keep the best interest of child. But for proper implementation of the act a good environment is essential where everyone would obey their assigned duties and responsibilities. He commented that in most of the cases police are not cooperative for diversion. Due to intensive work of JJS, they get good results in Khulna and Jessore but he knows nothing about the others district of Bangladesh. He also shared that, he always said in every seminar and meeting that child should come to court as a last resort. Diversion should be the first priority. He proposed that they should discuss at the policy level for promote diversion. Furthermore, relevant authority should create mass awareness as so that nobody can misuse the diversion concept. He requested to everyone to come forward and perform their responsibility according to the assigned responsibilities. He also added, it is time to protect children from any kind of violence. Dilruba Sultana, Judge, Additional Metropolitan Sessions Judge, Khulna said that according to Children Act 2013, one should not use the word "Child offender", it should be said as "Children in Conflict with the law". Children Act 2013 is a significant law to protect child from offense and violence. The relevant departments should first consider diversion. If there is no way for diversion only then child should bring on the court. Now a days, Child Affairs Police Officer of Khulna Metropolitan City knows about children Act 2013 and diversion. This is the result of JJS activities. In Khulna, Judges, Police, Probation Officer are very friendly about child interest. She shared with glad that this is an amazing change in Khulna and JJS is responsible for the success. She added because of JJS regular activities such as several meetings, trainings and advocacy initiatives with Judges, Polices and social workers that motivated us for working with children. She mentioned that the implementation of Children Act-2013 is sometimes challenging. There is some limitation in Children Act 2013. If the lower court gets extra power, then they can settle the case at this level and children have not to come at the high court. At last, she emphasized for continuing the initiatives of JJS. She also thanked JJS for organizing the national level sharing meeting, because it will promote diversion in future throughout the country.

#### **Open Discussion**

After sharing the experiences of diversion, the floor was open to all of the participants for sharing experiences. ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS requested everyone to share their experiences regarding on diversion issues. He also expected some questions from the participants.



Md. Nazrul Islam, CBCPC member, Khulna suggested for more involvement of community people in the follow up of diverted children which he thinks will contribute to the sustainability of the project. Momtaz Begum, CBCPC member, Jessore said about strengthening the CBCPC committee for more success. Because CBCPC is involved in turning the converted child into normal life.

Mizanur Rahman Akond, representatives of CAMPE said that we need more people involvement and create mass awareness to spread out the noble task. Like JJS, many government and non-government institutes with civil society should come forward. Another participant Mostafa Kamal, Deputy Director, Aparajeyo Bangladesh agreed with Mr. Akond speech and he also added that no good initiatives cannot sustain without the mass people involvement. So, government higher authority should work at policy level, where UNICEF can influence. He also wanted to know about UNICEF's future plan about child protection activities. A.F.M. Saiful Islam from Shapla Neer said that there should have complain management system, otherwise victims interest will be lost. He also emphasized in keeping victims interest first before diversion. He implied to have a root cause analysis system for identifying the reason behind offence occurrences. He wanted to have a clear idea about the three conditions of referral form. Dilruba Sultana, Judge, Additional Metropolitan Sessions Judge, Khulna explained in this regard that if any child wants to get diversion, he/she must fulfill the condition of diversion. Otherwise, diversion is not possible.



After ending the longtime open discussion session, Executive Director of JJS ATM Zakir Hossain conveyed thanks again to all of the participants for providing their precious opinion regarding diversion and he commented that those valuable comments will contribute in improving diversion program in future.

#### Speech by special Guests

#### Speech of Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, Addl. DIG, (Training & Sports), Bangladesh Police

Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, BPM, Additional DIG (Training and Sports) Police Head Quarter thanked all at the beginning of his speech. He expects earnest cooperation from all the police forces in Bangladesh. In his speech, he disclosed that establishment of rule of law is essential and it is obligatory for the police department to pay for the orders given by the learned court and directed by the constitution as well as other laws and provisions for proper maintenance of homeland. He also mentioned that a lot of troubles could endanger their way of success but they have to overcome all the troubles. In his speech, he also mentioned referring the quote of Kofi Annan-Former Secretary General of United Nations, "We will not enjoy the security of development and we cannot enjoy without development". He also said that Police job is very difficult to put on uniform and to work for the country. He also thanked and encouraged print and electronic media for broadcasting their successful stories and critics which is so much important for police department.

He also thanked JJS for organizing this effective workshop on Diversion under Children Act 2013. He requested JJS to organize a day-long program and should provide more focus on the selection of effective stakeholder and try to get sufficient feedback for their future works on child protection issues. He also informed that human rights, women, and children issues are getting



more attention in the police department training module and police department must try from their best level for proper implementation of children act 2013.

# Speech of Nasreen Begum, Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs

Nasreen Begum, Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs said that cooperation from mass people is essential to implement rules and regulations.



She commented that JJS is playing a pivotal role for the proper implementation of Children act in Khulna and Jessore. She is also thankful to JJS for sending the message of Children Act at the grass-root level. She also mentioned that involvement of lawyer would be making this meeting more benefitted and successful. She also mentioned that Children Act has been designed as child-friendly. Use of projector in the court would be an effective solution for continuing children justice in the court.

She also mentioned that adolescent club played a proactive role for the implementation of Diversion under children act 2013 both in Khulna and Jessore. She was thankful to JJS and UNICEF for establishing adolescent club both in Khulna and Jessore. Now children spent their leisure period in this adolescent club and engaging them in productive and educative works. This club is protecting children for occurring offensive and harmful acts. She also requested to JJS and UNICEF for continuing their development works on child protection issues and organizing meetings for sensitizing related stakeholders.

#### Speech of Jean Lieby, Chief, Child Protection Section, Unicef, Bangladesh

Jean Lieby, Chief, Child Protection Section, Unicef Bangladesh thanked to Honorable Justice of supreme court, Bangladesh, High Court Division, Additional Secretary-Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs, Additional DIG (Training and Sports), Police Head Quarter, Dhaka, Learned Judge of Additional Metropolitan Sessions Court Khulna and Learned Judge of Additional District and Sessions Court Jessore, Probation Officers



(Khulna and Jessore), Sub-inspector-Child Affairs Police Officer (Khulna and Jessore), and CBCPC members at the beginning of his speech. He started his speech saying that it is a pleas

ure for him to see the deprived children nearly. These two locations (Khulna and Jessore) have shown the weakness and opportunities of working on this child protection field or issues. He mentioned that the actors, judge, police officers, local associations, CBCPC members should work hand with hand for child protection issues. Diversion under Children Act, 2013 provide many scope and opportunities for child protection in Bangladesh. He also mentioned that adolescent clubs are playing a pro-active role for child protection issues in Bangladesh. The main purpose of "Promoting Community Initiatives for Establishing Justice for Children (PCIJFC)" project was looking for a better life for the children who engaged in bad or evil deeds/works, unfortunately. Because of extreme poverty, families have not so much time to look after them. In addition, most of the parents of these children are not aware and sensitized about the Diversion mechanism for protecting their children. He also added that case management at police station would be effective on this issue.

#### Speech by Chief Guest

Honorable Justice Sheikh Hassan Arif, Supreme Court of Bangladesh said that everyone should prioritize children interest. Probation Officer and Social worker especially who's working at field level are the key actors and their earnest motivation is essential for preserving children interest.

He also said that under the Children Act 2013, police officer can directly provide bail for any child which is not possible for any other law in Bangladesh. He also mentioned some limitations of children act which creates problems for decision making. He encouraged all saying that law amendment is also starting for wiped out the loopholes of children act.



He also added that he is engaged in several child protection committees in Bangladesh. He shared that JJS and UNICEF have given him the opportunity for working more closely on this issue. He also said that delaying in the presence of witness are also responsible for taking too long time to get the result from the court. He further added government has already initiated A21 internet project for solving this problem. Under this project, video conferencing mechanism will be used for collecting statement from the witness.

He was thankful to JJS and UNICEF for working on Child Protection issues in Bangladesh.

He also said that government stakeholders are lucky enough to work with the child protection issues through the help of JJS and UNICEF. He also requested to JJS and UNICEF for continuing their development works for the betterment of children in Bangladesh.

#### Closing Speech by the Chair

In the closing speech ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS said if we want to protect our country, we need to protect the children because children are the future of our nation. We need to promote diversion for the best interest of children in conflict with the law. He expects that experiences of the meeting will be utilized to the whole country that will benefit our children. He also urged to the related government officials for taking necessary initiatives to promote diversion. At last, the chair thanked all for their cordial cooperation to organize the program.

#### **Recommendations**

The daylong meeting has brought some suggestions what may consider for sustainability of the project.

- Diversion should conduct at Police Station because this is much easier than the diversion from the court.
- Children Act 2013 is very significant law in Bangladesh to keep the best interest of child. But for proper implementation of the law, everyone should obey their assigned duties and responsibilities. Should advocate each policy level to promote diversion. Furthermore, should create mass awareness as nobody can misuse the diversion concept.
- According to Children Act 2013, one should not use the word "Child Offender", it should be said as "Children in Conflict with the law".
- If the lower court gets extra power to practice Children Act, then they can settle the case at their level and children need not go to high court.
- The community should be involved in diversion works as we are working to make a good result from diversion. Comminity Based Child Protection Committee should be strengthened.
- Need more peoples' involvement and create mass awareness to spread out the noble task. Like JJS, many governments and non-government institutes with civil society should come forward.



- Should have complain management system in diversion procedures, otherwise victims interest will be lost. Need a root-causes analysis system for identifying the reason behind offence occurrences.
- Should provide more focus on the selection of effective stakeholder and try to get sufficient feedback for their future works on child protection issues.

#### Annex

#### Media Coverage



## অপরাধে জড়িত শিশুদের বিকল্প পন্থায় সংশোধন দাবি

নিজম্ব প্রতিবেদক 🏻

আইনের সঙ্গে সংঘাতে জড়িত শিওদের বিকল্প পদ্বায় সংশোধনের সুযোগ নিশ্চিত করতে হবে। বিকল্প পিন্থায় সংশোধনের মডেল তৈরি করতে ক্ষেত্রে আইনের মধ্যে থেকে শিশুর হবে। আদালতে আনার আগে পরিবার ও আইনশৃত্থলা রক্ষাকারী বাহিনীর সমন্বিত উদ্যোগে অপরাধে অভিযুক্ত শিশুকে স্বাভাবিক জীবনে ফিরিয়ে আনার চেষ্টা করতে হবে।

রাজধানীর ডেইলি স্টার ভবনের এ এস মাহমুদ কনফারেল হলে গতকাল সোমবার সকালে 'শিত আইন ২০১৩ অনুযায়ী বিকল্প পন্থা: যশোর ও খুলনার অভিজ্ঞতা' শীর্ষক জাতীয় পর্যায়ে এক অভিজ্ঞতা বিনিময় সভায় বক্তারা এসব কথা বলেন। অপরাধে অভিযুক্ত শিতর সুরক্ষায় জাগ্রত যুব উন্নয়ন তহবিল (ইউনিসেফ) যৌথভাবে এই সভার আয়োজন করে।

সভায় জাগ্রত যুব সংঘের নির্বাহী পরিচালক এ টি এম জাকির হোসেন বলেন, ছোট বা বড় অপরাধে অভিযুক্ত শিশুর জন্য দেশের প্রতিটি থানায় শিশু হেল্ল ডেস্ক এবং জেলা ও দায়রা জজ

আদালতে শিশুর জন্য শিশু কোর্টের ব্যবস্থা রাখতে হবে।

সভায় প্রধান অতিথির বক্তব্যে বিচারপতি শেখ হাসান আরিফ বলেন, শিশু অপরাধ মামলা সামলানোর স্বার্থ কীভাবে রক্ষা করা যায়, তা ভাবতে হবে। জামিনের ক্ষেত্রে শিস্তর সামাজিক ও পারিপার্শ্বিক পরিমঙল বিবেচনা করতে হবে। শিশু আইনেও কিছ সমস্যা আছে, যা সংশোধনে কাজ করা হচ্ছে।

সভায় বিশেষ অতিথির বক্তব্যে ইউনিসেফের জিন লিবে বলেন, 'শিশুরাই আমাদের ভবিষ্যৎ। তাদের প্রত্যেকেরই সংশোধনের জন্য দ্বিতীয় কিংবা তৃতীয়বার সুযোগ দেওয়া উচিত।

সভায় যশোরের সমাজসেবা সংঘ (জেজেএস) ও জাতিসংঘের শিশু অধিদপ্তরের প্রবেশন অফিসার মো. শাহাবৃদ্ধিন বলেন, ২০১৩ সাল থেকে গত সেপ্টেম্বর পর্যন্ত ৯৮ জন শিত্ত-কিশোর পরিবারের মাধ্যমে থানা থেকে বিকল্প পদ্বায় মুক্তি পেয়েছে। আর আদালতের সম্মতিক্রমে ৩৮ জন বিকল্প পদ্বায় মুক্তি পেয়েছে। অধিকাংশ শিশুই এখন ভালো আছে।

# The Paily Star

LATE S. M. ALI

DHAKA TUESDAY OCTOBER 25, 2016, KARTIK 10, 1423 BS

### Testimony thru' video conterence necessary

Suggest experts if criminal case witness stays in distant place

STAPI CORRESPONDISY

A tiem of legal experts has proposed that the government initiate measures for reconstruction of alternative care and diversions for the protection of childrent types of the protection of t



## रेप्रतिक शूर्वाकल

খুলনা ঃ মঙ্গলবার ২৫ অক্টোবর ২০১৬



ঢাকায় জেজেএস'র জাতীয় পর্যায় মতবিনিময় সভায় বক্তারা

স্টাফ বিশোচিত হু ছড়াত যুব সংখভেত্তভাল আন্যোজত জাইটা পৰ্বার মার্থবিশ্বমা সভার বাজার বেলার দার্থবিশ্বমা সভার বাজার বাজার দার্থবাদ্ধা জাইটা বাজার আবিত এটান দার্থবাদ্ধা জাইটা বাজার আবিত বাজান দার্থকে জানা বালাযোগ্য স্থানে আত্মা কর্মান বালাযোগ্য দার্থক আরা কর্মান বালাযোগ্য দার্থবাদ্ধা জাইটা বাজার মার্থবাদ্ধা করা বিশ্বমার বাজার ক্রান্থবাদ্ধা করা বিশ্বমার আমিন ক্ষোর আরাজ বিশ্বমার আমিন ক্ষোর আরাজ বিশ্বমার বাজানিক আইনের মংখাতে আসা শিশুনের জার্মনা দেয়ার জ্বারু বিরু বিশ্বরার তিরু কার্মনার আগ পান্ধ শিশুরে কিন্তুর পরার রাজ্য পান্ধ শিশুরে কিন্তুর পরার মান্ধ শিশুরে নার্মার ভাররে আহবান সামিতে শিশু রামার বিরুক্তির সামিত্র শিশুরে রামার বিরুক্তির সামিত্র শিশুরে রাজ্যার এইনা আসার আহবান জানাত্রা হয়। গাহুকাল সোম্বারর সকলো রাজ্যানী তারার হেখা পান্ধ কর্মার এ.এসা মাহ্মেশ হলে এ সভা অঞ্জীয় ভারার রাহ্মনার বিরুক্তির সাম্প্রার ক্রিকার হয়। গ্রহার রাহ্মনার বিরুক্তির বিরুক্তির সাম্বার

কোনের হাহতোচ । বভাগের । বভাগেনত 

শিশুবারব দেশ গড়তে

শীরের আনিগজামান ও বার্ডফর্ ম মাইজুল ইসনার, কপরাক্তের বার্ডফর্ ম মাইজুল ইসনার, কপরাক্তের বার্ডফর্ মারতার পার্ডলি, নার্ডলি ইসনার আকশ্ব-মারতার পার্ডলি, নার্ডলি ইসনার প্রথম । মতার আন্তর্জাতিক নারতা সংস্থা, ইউএন মংগ্রার প্রতিনাকিবৃশ্ব অংশাহর্ড করেন। সভার জানানার হা, বোসব শিক্ত আহিনের মংশ্যবে আরে, তানেরকে তানের

শেখ হাসান আবিছ।
জ্যেজনার নির্বাহী পরিচালক এটিএম
জ্যাজনার হোসেবের সান্ধানিক্তর এসময়
জ্যালির হোসেবের সান্ধানিক্তর এসময়
বিশেষ অতিক ছিল্লাইন আইন
স্ক্রালারের অতিক সিহিদ নার্ধান ক্রামার আতিকে জিলাক সান্ধানিক ক্রামার আতিকে ছিল্লাইন ছা, খ, মহিল ছিল্লা এইং ইইটিবারের পি পার্টার ক্রামার প্রতান করা ক্রামার ক্রামার ক্রামার প্রতান করা ক্রামার ক্রামার মহানার্ধান ক্রামার ক্রাম মধ্যে বকুতা করেন, খুলনার অতিরক্ত হয়লখন দ্বাহ্য জ্ঞা দিনকার স্বাভানে, যশোরের অতিরক্ত জেলা দাররা জ্ঞা যোঃ স্বন্ধুনল ইয়াম, সমাজনেরা আইন ইলাম, হ্বালারে প্রবেশ্য অফিসার ইলাম, হ্বালারে প্রবেশ্য অফিসার ইলাম, হ্বালার পার বিষয়ক পুলিশ অফিসার ফ্রাজানা বাহি বংলারের বিশ্ব বিহন্তে পুলিশ অফিসার বাহিলা, ব্রোসারক ক্রান্ধীলক আন্তর্জার বাহুলা, ইউনিসেফের জামিল আন্তর্জার বাহুলা, ইউনিসেফের জামিল আন্তর্জার বাহুলা, ইউনিসেফের জামিল আন্তর্জার বাহুলা, ইতিনিসেফের জামিল হানান, শাপলা ২-এর পারার্ড্

পরিবারের কাছে ফিরিয়ে দিয়ে সমাজ পরিবর্তনে সকলকে একযোগে কাজ কর্ত্ত হবে। এসময় জেজেএস'র কর্যক্রমের কিছু তথা তুলে ধরে বলা হয়, বিগত দুবিহরে খুগনার বিভিন্ন ধানা থেকে

১০৮জন ও আদালত থেকে ১২জন এবং যদোরর বিভিন্ন থানা থেকে ৩১জন ও আদালত থেকে ১৪জন শিখতে থেবাত এনে বিকল্প পদ্ধায় তাদের পরিবারের কাছে বস্তান্তর করা হয়।

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2016, KARTIK 10, 1423 BS

### Placing delinquent children under parents for correction stressed

Staff Correspondent

THE Children committing by reducted before producing them to the courts, they said when it eximes should be kept under the custody of their under the custody of their parents and leagl guardians to give them a chance to correct themselves, peakers also urged the discrepancies and leagl guardians to give them a chance to correct themselves, peakers at a seminar said on Monday. They said even if a child committee an officers in respective districts should a probation officers. In respective districts should he tickly with their guardians that intuitives to put the child with their guardians. The child rights campaigners said such actions are needed for the greaters. The child protection was children and the child with their guardians. The child rights campaigners said such actions are needed for the greaters. The said there are some beginned and the children. Designated officials spents provide the child with their guardians the child spents are the child replays to the children and the contract of the prosecutors. The child protection section of the prosecutors and the child with their guardians. The child rights campaigners said such actions are needed for the greaters of the children and the child with their guardians and expensive state such actions are needed for the greaters of the prosecutors. The child rights campaigners and such actions are needed for the greaters of the children and the child with their guardians and the child with their guardians. The child rights campaigners and such actions are needed for the greaters of the children and the child with their guardians and the child with the child with their guardians and the child with

Community correction for child delinquents

Mohammad Jamil Khan

Sub-inspector Khadija Khalim was
in a quandray a fifen months ago,
Wolsing at the Sub-inspector of free the Period of the Children from
young and possible of the Children from
young the Children from t

Act 2013 allows police officers to re-lease any access without taking to the court. The provision of the child act under 27 0's sleek, a child alliant police officer. (CADO) shall record the statement of the child in the presence of his or her the presents or, in a their absence, forter career or legal guidlan or members of his actended family, as the care may be, and the production officer or the social work-er.

The CAPO can release the child other giving a written or verbal warm-ing in the presence of his junerity or guardian. Such warming thail not be held as a record against the child. He may also avail diversionary meas-ures in respect of the child, weals the

The CAPO can release the child high four was the chief guest at the giving a written or webal warning in the presence of his jacents or, and the mational level experience-tharmagnian, such warning thail not be additional secretary of legislative

bit build a strong coordination by bidding meeting with judiciary, polike and other functional bodies to ensure that direction of a child can be charted for policy of the place in any stage from a reset to final alpostedies. \*\*

Takin also said our main there is a child doing a perty offeren once is not a crimital. The child can be charged, everyone needs a second chance.

Janicio Shales \*\*

Likhin, additional Diff of policy, and be can be consumed to the control of the control o

ince. Justice Hassan said if the Justice Shelkh Hassan Arif of field-level officials go in right di

## **Program Schedule**

| Time        | Subject   | Facilitator  |
|-------------|---|--|
| 09.30-09.45 | Registration  | JJS Staff  |
| 09.45-10.15 | Introducing, Welcome and Background                           | ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS   |
| 10.15-10.20 | Community Involvement in Diversion                            | Anjira Khatun, Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna  |
| 10.20-10.30 | Experience on Diversion<br>Practices in Khulna and<br>Jessore | Farzana Boby, Sub -Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer),<br>Sonadanga Model Thana, KMP, Khulna<br>Khadij a Khatun, Sub Inspector (Child Affairs Police Officer),<br>Kotwali Thana, Jessore   |
| 10.30-11.00 | Refreshment   | Conference Hall Authority  |
| 11.00-11.15 | Diversion VIDEO Show  | UNICEF-Bangladesh  |
| 11.15-11.35 | Why Promotion of Diversion is Important                       | Md. Shafiqul Islam, Probation Officer, DSS, CMM Court,<br>Khulna<br>Md. Shahabuddin, Probation Officer, Department of Social<br>Service, Jessore   |
| 11.35-11.55 | Diversion and Children<br>Act-2013: Success and<br>Obstacles  | Md. Monjurul Imam, Judge, Additional District and Sessions<br>Court, Jess ore<br>Dilruba Sultana, Judge, Additional Metropolitan Sessions<br>Judge, Khulna   |
| 11.55-12.25 | Discussion by the Guests                                      | ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS   |
| 12.25-1.00  | Speech by special Guests                                      | Jean Lieby, Chief, Child Protection Section, UNICEF – Bangladesh Abu Muhammad Yousuf, Director Program, Department of Social Service, Dhaka Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, Addl. DIG, (Training & Sports), Bangladesh Police Nasreen Begum, Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division, Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs |
| 1.00-1.15   | Speech by Chief Guest   | Justice Sheikh Hassan Arif, Honorable Justice, Supreme<br>Court of Bangladesh  |
| 1.15-1.20   | Closing Speech by Chair                                       | ATM Zakir Hossain, Executive Director, JJS   |
| 1.20-       | Lunch   | Conference Hall Authority  |

### Participants of the Meeting

| SI No. | Name of Participants                                    | Designation and Address  |
|--------|---|--|
| 1      | Honorable Justice<br>Sheikh Hassan Arif<br>-Chief Guest | Supreme Court of Bangladesh, High Court Division, Dhaka  |
| 2      | Nasreen Begum<br>Special Guest                          | Additional Secretary, Legislative & Parliamentary Affairs Division Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs.   |
| 3      | Dr. Kh. Mahid Uddin, BPM<br>Special Guest               | Additional DIG (Training and Sports) Police Head Quarter, Dhaka  |
| 4      | Jean Lieby<br>Special Guest                             | Chief, Child Protection Section, UNICEF Bangladesh.  |
| 5      | Dilruba Sultana   | Additional Metropolitan Session Judge, Khulna and Learned Judge of Children Court Khulna   |
| 6      | Md. Monjurul Imam                                       | Additional District and Sessions Judge Jessore and Learned Judge of Children Court Jessore   |
| 7      | Md. Shofiqul Islam                                      | Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, Khulna,CMM<br>Court, Khulna   |
| 8      | Md. Shahabuddin Ahmed                                   | Probation Officer, Department of Social Service, Jessore   |
| 9      | Md. Shazzadur Rahman                                    | Sub-Inspector, (Child Affairs Police Officer) Daulatpur Thana, KMP,<br>Khulna  |
| 10     | FarzanaBoby   | Sub-Inspector, (Child Affairs Police Officer) Sonadanga Model<br>Thana, KMP, Khulna  |
| 11     | Khadeja Khatun  | Sub-Inspector, (Child Affairs Police Officer) Jessore, Kotwali Thana,<br>Jessore   |
| 12     | Anjira Khatun   | Councillor, Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna   |
| 13     | Md. Nazrul Islam  | Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna   |
| 14     | Jahidul Islam   | Member, Child Protection Committee, Khulna   |
| 15     | Mamtaz Parvin   | Member, Child Protection Committee, Jessore  |
| 16     | Jamil Hasan   | Child Protection Officer, UNICEF, Dhaka  |
| 17     | Jamila Akter  | Representative, Child Protection Specialist, UNICEF, Dhaka   |
| 18     | Shabnaaz Zahereen                                       | Child Protection Specialist, UNICEF, Dhaka   |
| 19     | A. F. M Faisal Haque                                    | Program Officer, CSPB, Dhaka   |
| 20     | Engr. M. A. Mannan                                      | Save the Children, Dhaka, Bangladesh   |
| 21     | Mizanur Rahman Akhand                                   | DPM, CAMPE, Dhaka, Bangladesh  |
| 22     | A.F.M. Saiful Islam                                     | Shapla Neer, Dhaka, Bangladesh<br>9/19 Iqbal Road, Mohammadpur, Dhaka  |
| 23     | Bably Surya   | BRAC, BRAC Centre, 77 Mahakhali, Dhaka, Bangladesh   |
| 24     | Mustafa Rahman  | Assistant Director Aparajeyo Bangladesh 14/3/A, Shornali Garden, Baishteki (Opposite BRTA main gate), Mirpur-13. Dhaka-1216, Bangladesh                                      |
| 25     | LubnaYasin  | Investigations and Human Rights Expert, Human Rights Program, UNDP UNDP, Bangladesh UN Offices, 18th Floor, IDB Bhaban, Agargaon, Sher-e-Bangla Nagar,1207 Dhaka, Bangladesh |
| 26     | Amran Hossain   | The Daily Star, 64-65, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka-1215  |
| 27     | Saeliqur Rahman   | Staff Correspondent Daily New Age  |

|    |                        | Media New Age Ltd. 30 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208.                           |
|----|------------------------|--|
| 28 | Ahmed Deepto           | Trainee Journalist   |
|    |                        | Daily ProthomAlo   |
|    |                        | CA Bhaban, 100 KaziNazrul Islam Avenue, Karwan Bazar, Dhaka-                         |
|    |                        | 1215   |
| 29 | Md. Jamil Khan         | Staff Reporter, Dhaka Tribune  |
|    |                        | FR Tower,  |
|    |                        | 8/C Panthapath,  |
| 20 | Carilala Islama Damil  | Shukrabad, Dhaka 1207.   |
| 30 | Sajida Islam Parul     | Staff Reporter, The Daily Samokal, Dhaka   |
| 31 | H. M. Alauddin         | 136 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208 Staff Reporter, The Daily Purbanchal, Khulna |
| 31 | H. M. Alduddin         | 38, Iqbal Nagar Mosque Lane, Khulna-9100, Bangladesh                                 |
| 32 | Zannatul Bakiya keKa   | Channel i  |
| 32 | Zaririator Bakiya keka | Address: 40, Shahid Tajuddin Sarani, Tajgaon I/A, Dhaka, 1208                        |
|    |                        | Dhaka  |
| 33 | ATM Zakir Hossain      | Executive Director, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                 |
| 34 | Saifuddin Ahmed        | Director, Finance, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                  |
| 35 | M M Chisty             | Coordinator, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna  |
| 36 | Sheikh Nazmul Huda     | Project Coordinator, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                |
| 37 | Abdul Baki             | Assistant Project Coordinator, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                      |
| 38 | Shibu Pada Sarker      | Assistant Project Coordinator, JJS, Jessore  |
| 39 | Asif Hossain           | Programme Officer, JJS, 35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                  |
| 40 | Saiful Islam           | Finance Officer, JJS,35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                     |
| 41 | Shahina Akter          | Project Officer, JJS,35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                     |
| 42 | Tahmid Aakash          | Project Officer, Jessore   |
| 43 | Kazi Faisal Islam      | Research Officer, JJS,35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                    |
| 44 | Md. Shojib Ali         | Project Officer, JJS,35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                     |
| 45 | Soubik Ahmed           | Project Officer, JJS,35/8 T.B Cross Road, Khulna                                     |
| 46 | Md. Anisuzzaman        | Project Officer, ShaplaNeer  |
| 47 | Md. Tariqul Islam      | Sub-Inspector, CID   |
| 48 | Md. Billal             | Videographer   |
| 49 | Md. Jahangir           | Videographer   |
| 50 | Sourav Lasker          | New Age  |
| 51 | Md. Firoj Miah         | Personal Officer, High Court   |
| 52 | Mehedi Hasan           | Dhaka Tribune  |
| 53 | Palas                  | The Daily Star   |
| 54 | Md. Zakir              | ShaplaNeer   |
| 55 | M. Rahman              | Butz   |

